
1 
 

APPROVED MINUTES 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

CITY OF WYOMING, MINNESOTA 
APRIL 9, 2019 

7:00PM 
CALL TO ORDER: 
Planning Commission Chairman Lobermeier called the Regular Meeting of the Wyoming Planning 
Commission for April 9, 2019 to order at 7:00 PM 
 
CALL OF ROLL: 
On a Call of the Roll the following members of the Wyoming Planning Commission were present:  
Mark Lobermeier, Bryan Murdock, Joel Ericson, Katie West, and Judy Coughlin  
 
ABSENT: None 
 
Also Present: Fred Weck Zoning Administrator and Council Liaison Lisa Iverson 
 
DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM: 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
 
OPEN FORUM: NONE 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
 
1. Consider approving the minutes of the “Regular Meeting” of the Wyoming, Minnesota 

Planning Commission for March 26, 2019 
 

Chair Lobermeier noted that there were two minor errors that he would like corrected.  He 
noted that on page 3, the second sentence should state “without” and not “within” and on page 
4, second to last paragraph the word “sit” should be changed to “it”.   
 
A MOTION WAS MADE BY COMMISSIONER WEST, SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER 
ERICSON, TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE “REGULAR MEETING” OF THE 
WYOMING, MINNESOTA PLANNING COMMISSION FOR MARCH 26, 2019, AS 
AMENDED. 
 
Voting Aye: Murdock, Ericson, West, Coughlin, and Lobermeier 
Voting Nay: None 
Abstain:  None 
Absent:   None 

 
SCHEDULED PUBLIC HEARINGS: NONE 
 
NEW BUSINESS - NONE 
 
OLD BUSINESS: 
 
2. Comprehensive Plan Update – Land Use Chapter – Service Areas 
 
Chair Lobermeier stated that he thinks it would be a good idea to go through the Land Use and 
Growth Area maps first.    
 
Zoning Administrator Weck review the Growth Area maps for the Commission.   
 
Chair Lobermeier stated that as the Commission looks at Growth Areas, one of the things to 



2 
 

consider is whether the City should have them zoned the way the Comprehensive Plan is seeing 
them.  He stated that he feels this would make it clear what someone can do when they come to 
town and want to develop.  He suggested that the next version of the map show undeveloped 
properties within the growth boundaries.  He noted that the City should also be thinking about 
how these areas can be zoned so they are more easily understood and readily able to be 
developed in the way the City wants them to develop 
 
Commissioner Coughlin stated that she is not sure how WSB determined the Growth Areas, but 
noted she was surprised that the area that Paxmar would like to go is not one of the Growth Areas.   
 
Zoning Administrator Weck stated that he believes that it is included in Growth Area 1. 
 
Commissioner Murdock stated that he would like there to be separate 11 x 17 pages that have 
each area blown up with “shovel ready” details. 
 
Chair Lobermeier stated that the big things in his mind would be showing whether it has sewer 
and water today or if it has potential for sewer and water extension with some level of effort.   
 
Commissioner West stated that she agreed with blowing up the map information and giving more 
detail, so people can see what the property looks like.   
 
Commissioner Murdock noted that there is a shovel ready checklist that it would be really easy to 
incorporate for each site. 
 
Commissioner Coughlin stated she liked the idea that Commissioner Murdock found in Oklahoma 
City’s Comprehensive Plan where they had the gradient map that showed the areas of the City 
that were easier to develop down to harder to develop.   
 
Commissioner Murdock stated that a great start to the plan might be getting this area of the 
Comprehensive Plan fleshed out.  He suggested that the Commission divide and conquer and 
gather the information for the shovel ready checklist. 
 
Chair Lobermeier asked what level of detail was appropriate and asked if the Commission would 
hand off the marketing type details to the EDA to complete.  He stated that he wonders what 
would be the Commissions responsibility and who else may be able to take on gathering a portion 
of this information. 
 
Commissioner West suggested that when the City gets the shovel ready information together, 
that the areas be labeled numerically in a hierarchal way to show which areas are “more” shovel 
ready. 
 
Chair Lobermeier stated that he is thinking back to the discussion with the EDA that much of the 
growth in the City relied on “rooftops”.  He noted that there may need to be a discussion about 
having higher density in the areas that are able to be served.  He stated that another issue that 
would help if it were more clearly defined on the map would be showing the large amounts that 
are not developable because of wetlands in the City.  
 
Zoning Administrator Weck noted that the map behind the Commission had the wetland areas 
superimposed over the map. 
 
Commissioner Coughlin stated that it isn’t fair to include these whole areas on the map saying 
that it can all be developed, when it cannot, because of the wetlands.   
 
Zoning Administrator Weck noted that the next two maps are the existing sanitary sewer and 
water maps and shows where the pipes actually are located.   
 



3 
 

The Commission discussed details and potential service areas on the maps.   
 
Commissioner Murdock asked if there was thought of including “Go” and “No Go” areas on the 
maps in terms of expansion of the undeveloped areas.   
 
Chair Lobermeier stated that there is just one small “No Go” area on the current map in the 
Comprehensive Plan, but he believes that there are other areas that should be designated as “No 
Go” on the maps.  He stated that he would like the map to depict where there is undeveloped 
property that is within a Growth Area that has the potential for service.   
 
Commissioner Ericson asked about the EDA and whether they market potential properties to 
buyers or wait for buyers to come to the City and then try to find them properties. 
 
Mayor Iverson stated that the EDA actually does both and explained some of the ways they have 
marketed the City or responded to interested parties.  She stated that both City Administrator 
Linwood and Zoning Administrator Weck have done a great job when people call into the City, 
but some of the changes that the Commission is talking about would be very helpful and would 
allow the process to move more quickly because this information would be readily available to 
interested developers.    
 
Commissioner West liked Commissioner Murdock’s suggestion because it will explain exactly 
what is available and how it can be developed.   
 
Commissioner Coughlin asked how a willing or unwilling seller could be factored into the 
information. 
 
Commissioner West asked whether the City should be marketing property that it thinks is great 
and developable if the owner is not interested in selling.   
 
Zoning Administrator Weck suggested that the land be shown as available, but someone will have 
to convince the owner to sell.   
 
Chair Lobermeier stated that he liked something that Commissioner West said in the last meeting 
about “how the boat can be rocked enough to get people excited”.  He stated that he would like 
to see people interested enough to come in and look at the maps and talk to the City about what 
the overall thoughts and plans are.  He stated that the City needs to get feedback from people so 
the Comprehensive Plan isn’t created in a vacuum.  He stated that there needs to be a way to 
articulate a shared vision between the Commission, EDA, the Council, and that it be presented to 
the residents to see what they think. 
 
Commissioner Coughlin asked if it might be a good idea to go to the public first and get their 
feedback before jumping in to all the visioning and planning.  She stated that she hesitates to put 
the cart before the horse and noted the example of the issues that Minneapolis is having with their 
2040 plan that has been controversial in the minds of the people.  She stated that she thinks it 
may make sense to get the input first to see what direction the City wants to grow.   
 
Chair Lobermeier stated that was involved in a large event in River Falls, WI a few years ago that 
was all about “rocking people’s boats”.  He stated that the process started with surveys and a big 
kick-off event and then they held work sessions where everyone sat together with the maps 
spread out and talked about what they were thinking.  He stated that they were able to collect a 
lot of valuable input by doing things this way.  He stated that based on discussion at the last 
meeting with the EDA, the theme of the survey may be, “What brings you to Wyoming?”  He noted 
that he thinks starting with a survey may be a good initial exercise and also lay out the whole 
community engagement process.   
 
Commissioner Coughlin stated that she feels the engagement process needs to have more 



4 
 

structure to allow meaningful feedback, so it isn’t just people standing at the podium telling the 
City what they don’t like. 
 
Mayor Iverson stated that she feels that the City needs to meet the people where they are.  She 
stated that she thinks some of the community engagement can happen at the larger events, such 
as Stagecoach Days or the upcoming event regarding the future Veteran’s Memorial Park.  She 
stated that the Commission could set up tables and even just go out to places like the grocery 
store or the new coffee shop.   
 
Chair Lobermeier asked if there had ever been a community-wide survey conducted. 
 
Zoning Administrator Weck stated that he thinks there may have been one done in the township, 
but he does not think there has been one done in the City. 
 
Commissioner West stated that she thinks using Facebook could be a very valuable tool and 
noted that there can even be polls posted through there. 
 
Chair Lobermeier noted that the problem with that is that people have to click “like” the City’s 
Facebook page or taken the step to sign up to get notifications.  He stated that he thinks there 
are still a large number of people who have not done that, so the City is missing their feedback.   
 
Mayor Iverson stated that this is where the different age demographic information comes in handy 
because the age ranges like to communicate and get their information differently.   
 
Zoning Administrator Weck expressed concern about getting feedback from someplace like 
Twitter because he knows, for example, the Wyoming Police Department page has followers from 
other States.  He stated that he would want to find a way to get feedback only from actual 
residents.   
 
Chair Lobermeier stated that some of the social media platforms can be used to drive residents 
over to where the City wants them to be in order to get feedback, such as a local event.   
 
Commissioner Ericson noted that he has done a lot of surveys through his work.  He stated that 
if you do a voluntary survey, you tend to get 2 extremes of people that love something or hate 
something, but the people in the middle just don’t bother. 
 
Commissioner West suggested that there be some sort of incentive to get a broader base of 
people filling out the survey.   
 
Chair Lobermeier stated that people love giveaways.  He asked if there may be someone available 
from the County or a neighboring city that may help with the scope of a public engagement plan.   
 
Mayor Iverson stated that she is going to a mayoral conference in a few weeks where there will 
be about 100 mayors.  She noted that she also has access to mayors through the League of 
Minnesota Cities and can put the word out for some ideas of what other cities are doing.  She 
stated that she knows many cities are actually hiring staff that is an “engagement coordinator”.  
She stated that there is also a meeting in Duluth put on by the League of Minnesota Cities this 
summer that has a whole section on community engagement and noted that she had already 
planned to attend that session.   
 
Commissioner Murdock stated that planning is a foreign concept to most residents and it may be 
hard to get people interested in a survey.  He stated that he thinks the City may need to first 
educate people about what planning is and what is coming before they are asked to participate 
in a survey.  He thinks there may be a better response if it is done that way.  He gave an example 
of dividing the City into 4 quadrants and holding root beer float events in each area to begin the 
process of explaining the planning process to residents.   



5 
 

 
Commissioner West stated that she really likes the idea of a root beer float event.  She asked if 
the City could start a little public engagement in the newsletter.  She suggested something small, 
like a paragraph written in language that is easily understood by all, to get feedback.  She stated 
that another possible outreach opportunity is having a read aloud event at the library, so the kids 
could be engaged in that while the parents are getting information about the City.   
 
Chair Lobermeier thinks that Commissioner Murdock had a good point and thinks it boils down to 
something more rudimentary of why people are here in the City, why they stay, and what they 
would like to see here.    
 
Mayor Iverson stated that she will reach out to the EDA to see if there are any grant opportunities 
or funding available to help with the community engagement piece. 
 
Commissioner Coughlin stated that she thinks the Commission needs to narrow down what it is 
Iooking for before the community engagement begins.   
 
Chair Lobermeier stated that getting some assistance from a planning person would be helpful 
because they can take all the data gathered and the dots on a map and interpret the information.   
 
Commissioner Coughlin asked if most cities hire consultants to put together their Comprehensive 
Plans. 
 
Mayor Iverson stated that she will ask the mayors group to see what they say.  She stated that 
there may also be grants out there to help smaller cities hire a consultant to complete the 
Comprehensive Plan process. 
 
Chair Lobermeier stated that there may be some resources through ULI that may be able to give 
the City some guidance. 
 
Commissioner Murdock stated that perhaps the City could take a look at seniors in the Planning 
area at the University of Minnesota and see if they would want to participate and assist the City 
in this process. 
 
Chair Lobermeier suggested that the Commission try to walk through one more section before 
ending the meeting.  He suggested starting on page 17. 
 
Commissioner Coughlin stated that the things listed in the first sentence are outdated and need 
to have current information but, wasn’t sure the City wanted to stick with this same format.  She 
stated it listed things that the City was going to do and some of the things that were done, and 
some things were not.  She stated that the current Comprehensive Plan contains a lot of specifics 
about what the City is going to do and asked whether it should be more broad.   
 
Chair Lobermeier stated that he feels there needs to be an implementation section added to the 
Comprehensive Plan, so people don’t have to read through and dig out the information in each 
section. 
 
Commissioner Coughlin stated that she found some things that are zoning things and could be 
implemented, such as requiring 5-foot concrete sidewalks in residential developments.   
 
Chair Lobermeier noted that there are many ideas in the current Comprehensive Plan that have 
merit, but are not connected in a usable, easy to understand way.   
 
Commissioner Murdock stated that he is willing to put together a potential outline and a picture 
board format as a starting point.  He stated that it will be simple and will not contain content, just 
a basic idea of what it may contain and some of the sections.    



6 
 

 
Chair Lobermeier thanked Commissioner Murdock for stepping up and doing this work.  He asked 
the Commission to take a closer look at this section and bring back ideas to the next meeting. 
 
Zoning Administrator Weck asked the Commission to keep their paperwork from this meeting and 
bring it back to the next meeting.  He stated that he will begin working on the map to superimpose 
the wetlands and the developable parcels. 
 
Commissioner Murdock stated that he will bring the shovel ready checklist from the State to the 
next meeting. 
 
Chair Lobermeier stated that he thinks the best place to start is with the map and not just write a 
bunch of text and try to make the map fit. 
 
COMMUNICATIONS:  NONE 
 
UPDATES: NONE  
 

A MOTION WAS MADE BY COMMISSIONER COUGHLIN, SECONDED BY 
COMMISSIONER WEST, TO ADJOURN THE APRIL 9, 2019 “REGULAR MEETING” OF 
THE WYOMING, MINNESOTA PLANNING COMMISSION AT 8:13 PM. 
 
Voting Aye: Murdock, Ericson, West, Coughlin, and Lobermeier 
Voting Nay: None 
Abstain:  None 
Absent:   None 

 


	CITY OF WYOMING, MINNESOTA

